
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
Council Chambers, 115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
*Monday, June 9, 2014  6:30 p.m. - * Tuesday, June 10 is Primary Election Day 
www.surfsidebeach.org   -   (843) 913-6111 -   (843) 238-5432 
 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor Oakie Landers, Pine Drive Gospel Church   
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING - Pursuant to §6-1-80 of the SC Code of Laws, public notice is hereby given that the Town 
Council for the Town of Surfside Beach will hold a public hearing on the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Municipal Budget. 
 
4.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
5.   MINUTES APPROVAL  
 A.   Regular Meeting Minutes May 27, 2014 
 B.   Budget & Parking Workshop Action Minutes June 2, 2014 

 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 
 
7.   COMMUNICATIONS 
 A.   Department Reports 
  i.   Fire   
  ii.   Planning, Building & Zoning 
  iii.  Police 
 B.   Administrator’s Report  - Update on Current Events 
     
8.   BUSINESS  
 A. Second Readings of Ordinances 
  i.   Ordinance #14-0777 to amend §2-208 Bidding & Quotation Requirements and Approval 
Authority, to increase limits and correct approval authority, Administrator Fellner.  
  ii. Ordinance #14-0778 to amend §5-32(B) Statements of Economic Interest and §5-33 Campaign 
Disclosure Forms, Administrator Fellner 
 B. First Readings or Ordinances 
  i. Ordinance #14-0779 to adopt FY 2014-2015 Municipal Budget, Director King  
  ii. Ordinance #14-0780 to amend §2-39(a) Agenda; §2-39(b)(9) Discussion; §2-40 Addressing the 
Council, & 2-54 Appearance of Citizens, Councilmember Mabry  
 C.   Parking Committee Appointment – Mr. Ed Hunt (May be deferred until after executive session.) 
 
9.   DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council. 
 
10.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 
 
11.   COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
12.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 A.   Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment of a person to a public body.  (Parking 
Committee) 
 B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, 
demotion, discipline, or release of an employee, Administrator Fellner 
 C. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(2) to discuss proposed contractual arrangements, Administrator Fellner    
  
13.   ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.surfsidebeach.org/�




 

Page 1 of 7 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  2 
  MAY 27, 2014  6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.

 12 

  Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, 8 
Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, Mabry, Magliette and Stevens 9 
were in attendance.  A quorum was present.  Others present:  Town Administrator Fellner; Town Clerk 10 
Herrmann; Finance Director King; Public Works Director Adair, and Recreation Supervisor Ellis.    11 

 2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

 15 

  Reverend Kirk Lawton, Ocean Lakes 13 
Campground Ministries, gave the invocation.  Mayor Samples lead the Pledge. 14 

 3.  AGENDA APPROVAL.

 20 

  Mr. Magliette moved to approve the agenda with an amendment to 16 
delete business item 11.B.  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, appointment, 17 
compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  All 18 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 19 

 4.  MINUTES APPROVAL.

 23 

  Mr. Stevens moved to approve the workshop minutes of April 30 and 21 
May 1, 2014 as submitted.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 22 

 Mr. Stevens moved to approve the regular meeting minutes of May 13, 2014 as submitted.  Ms. 24 
Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 25 
 26 
 5.  
 28 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items (3 minutes.) 27 

 Mr. Ron Ott of 7th Avenue North asked why the town could not operate its own Turkey Trot type 29 
race to raise money.  He thanked public works and the police department for their good week over the 30 
Memorial Day weekend. 31 
 32 
 6.  
 34 

COMMUNICATIONS. 33 

 A.  Department Reports. 35 
 36 
 i.  Finance.  Ms. King presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  General fund 37 
revenue exceeds the amount received last year by $184,000, much of which was parking fund revenue 38 
that was moved from hospitality funds into general funds, higher internal transfer amounts, and some 39 
non-recurring revenue, including money from Santee Cooper.  Business license renewals are coming in; 40 
they are due June 1.  License receipts exceed last year by $64,000.  There were 24 new businesses in 41 
April.  The salaries and benefits expense is higher this year, because employees that were previously 42 
paid by other funds are now included in the general fund.  Operating expenses are higher, $162,000, 43 
most due to Lanier Parking Solutions, tort insurance, legal fees and utilities, but are within the budgeted 44 
amounts.  Capital projects expenditures equal $110,000 on stormwater projects; accommodations tax 45 
funds expenditures equal $407,000 for police patrol, and advertising with the Myrtle Beach Area Chamber 46 
of Commerce.  The State payment for January-February-March was $27,000, which was much lower than 47 
the $50,000 received last year.  She believed that was because the State was adjusting payments as it 48 
implemented its new payment system.  Hospitality tax collections exceed last year; the fund balance 49 
overall shows a decrease, because parking funds are now handled through the general fund.  Pier 50 
revenue is ahead of last year; parking revenue in the pier is also higher.  Sanitation revenue is up by 51 
$177,000; summer service billing begins on the next water bill.  Parking and citation revenue collected by 52 
Lanier totals $220,000; Lanier expenses equal $90,000.  Net revenue is $119,000.  Lanier staff and Ms. 53 
King will meet to ensure that all numbers match prior to the workshop scheduled on June 2. 54 
 55 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

  Mr. Stevens asked why parking funds were placed in the general fund.  Ms. King explained for 56 
cash flow in the general fund.   57 
 58 
 ii.  Public Works.  Mr. Adair presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  Six 59 
businesses increased dumpster pickup service; seven accounts needed extra service due to overflow.  60 
Services were explained to four new businesses.  The April 25 through 27 household hazardous/e-waste 61 
drop off had 107 residents participate dropping off 5,570 pounds of hazardous materials.  The electronics 62 
waste will be picked up; the next report will include that information.  To date 455 exemptions were 63 
requested from summer service.  Sunday, May 11th was the start of the three times a week roll out that 64 
will continue until Sunday, September 7th.  April collections include:  431 tons solid waste; 47 tons mixed 65 
debris; 242 tons yard debris, which is about 20 tons higher than last April, so yard debris is returning to 66 
normal amounts, and 43 tons recyclables.  Surfside Drive roadway, parking areas, and crosswalk were 67 
restriped.  Bid for the Myrtle and Magnolia drainage basin will be opened on May 28th at 2:00 p.m. in town 68 
hall.  Sidewalk repairs were completed at 10th Avenue South.  Eight faulty street light reports were sent to 69 
Santee Cooper.  Grounds division cleaned the Veterans Memorial fountain and landscaping was 70 
prepared for the Memorial Service.  Repairs and replacements are being made to lake fountains; lake 71 
spraying is underway.  Fleet maintenance completed 82 repairs and 53 preventive maintenance tasks.  72 
Facilities completed renovations to the civic center.  A 9-foot bicycle rack was installed at the pier.  Plans 73 
are to install a second bike rack, because it is being used by so many people.  The Sun Burn Prevention 74 
trailer made possible by the Surfside Baptist Church volunteers was put into service May 23rd.  75 
Congratulations were extended to Willie Myers and Tom Nophsker who won 2nd and 3rd places, 76 
respectively, at the American Public Works Association Pee Dee Backhoe Rodeo held on May 19th in 77 
Conway.                78 
 79 
 Mr. Childs complimented Mr. Adair on the thoroughness of his report, and congratulated Mr. 80 
Myers and Mr. Nophsker. 81 
 82 
 Mr. Magliette asked if there was an update on the Palmetto Lake issue.  The petition indicated the 83 
problem had been on-going.  Mr. Adair said the lake was treated and the water flow adjusted to help keep 84 
the water moving and clean.  The problem presented last year, and staff needed to monitor the lake to 85 
determine whether the issue was engineering related, chemical composition or both.     86 
 87 
  iii.  Special Events and Recreation.  Ms. Ellis presented the written report, a copy of which is on 88 
file.  The Founder’s Day Weekend held the beginning of May that ran Friday, Saturday and Sunday was a 89 
huge success.  WPDE was the lowest bidder for the Founder’s Day advertisement.  WPDE did a great job 90 
covering the event, including a live remote at the pier, ads on its website, and ads during each news 91 
broadcast throughout the event.  The 50th Anniversary chairman, Bob Childs, appeared on WPDE’s 92 
Carolina Company and Live.  Farmers Market opened May 6th and will be held every Tuesday until the 93 
end of October.  Sunday Serenades began May 25th and will continue until August 31st.  T. J. “Bill” 94 
Harrison Memorial Park ribbon cutting was held May 19th.  Bill, Linda, and Randy Harrison were in 95 
attendance to honor their father, who was the town’s first mayor.  St. James Middle School brought 43 96 
students for the annual tour of the fire, police, and court departments.  Thanks were expressed to 97 
Sergeant Bailey, Lieutenant Hofmann, Captain Williams, and Associate Clerk Riley for their excellent 98 
presentations.  A special thank you was given to Special Event Coordinator Stalnaker who was the mock 99 
prisoner for the day.   Renovations were completed in the civic center.  The facilities crew did an excellent 100 
job.  The Pastors’ Coop was thanked for the employee luncheon served on May 22nd.  Everyone enjoyed 101 
their lunch and it was very much appreciated.  Movies After Dark begins June 12th.  The Memorial Day 102 
cookout was very busy; $1,998 worth of food was sold, which would equate to about 500 people 103 
attending.  The Memorial Day Service had about 200 people attending.  USAF Ret. Col. Rick McDow, a 104 
Vietnam POW, was the guest speaker.  He received a standing ovation after his comments.   105 
 106 
 Mr. Childs believed next year some vendors should be invited to serve food at the cookout.  The 107 
only complaints he heard were from people waiting in lines that were up to 50 people long.  Ms. Ellis said 108 
Chief Keziah kept going to Piggly Wiggly to pick up additional supplies, because they kept running out. 109 
 110 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 C.  Administrator’s Report – Update on Current Events.

 118 

  Ms. Fellner reported that the 111 
employee policy manual was at the attorney for review.  The Municipal Association gives the town ten 112 
free hours, and its attorney is performing the review.  Once attorney review was completed, the manual 113 
would go to the organizational committee, and then possibly to the town’s labor attorney, and finally to 114 
Town Council for approval.  A budget and parking workshop will be held on Monday, June 2nd at 9:00 115 
a.m.  The annual Hurricane Preparedness meeting is Thursday, June 5th at 6:30 p.m.   The public is 116 
invited to all meetings and events.   117 

 Ms. Fellner reported pursuant to Town Code Section 2-208(e), which states in part that the 119 
administrator shall notify the council of any contract modification in excess of $5,000, that there is an 120 
emergency expenditure by way of a change order for the 3rd Avenue South bank stabilization project 121 
recommended by the engineer totaling approximately $31,000.  The budgeted amount was $150,000; the 122 
original bid was just under $100,000, so the total amount will be within the budgeted amount.  A written 123 
statement will be sent to Town Council pursuant to code with the details.   124 
  125 
 7.  BUSINESS.
 127 

   126 

 A.  First Readings of Ordinances 128 
  129 
 i.  Ordinance #14-0776 to amend §4, Art. II, Peddling & Soliciting, amend to establish 130 
purpose and intent, Administrator Fellner.  Ms. Fellner presented the decision paper that is on file.  131 
Approval of this ordinance will establish that the purpose of the peddling and soliciting article is for the 132 
sole purpose of providing services to town residents after declared disasters in order to make their homes 133 
ready for living and/or business properties ready to open as quickly as possible after an emergency 134 
event. 135 
 136 
 Mr. Stevens began discussion.  Mr. Johnson called point of order, no motion on the floor.  Mr. 137 
Stevens moved to suspend rules to allow discussion.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION 138 
CARRIED.  Mr. Stevens believed that this ordinance could be challenged based on Supreme Court 139 
Rulings.  He wanted a legal opinion and also a review by the business committee.  Ms. Fellner said the 140 
proposed amendment was suggested by the town attorney. 141 
 142 
 Mayor Samples asked if there was a problem in town.  Ms. Fellner said yes, this was to address 143 
an issue that just occurred.  The current ordinance allows solicitation by town licensed businesses twice a 144 
year for three days each time.  Mr. Stevens moved to reconvene regular session.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  145 
All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 146 
 147 
 Mr. Johnson moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance #14-0776.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All 148 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Ms. Fellner was asked to have the attorney address Constitutional 149 
issues before second reading. 150 
 151 
 ii.  Ordinance #14-0777 to amend §2-208 Bidding & Quotation Requirements and Approval 152 
Authority, to increase limits and correct approval authority, Administrator Fellner.  Mayor Samples 153 
said this matter was discussed at the budget retreat.  Ms. Fellner presented the issue paper that is on file 154 
and explained that service is the goal; increasing the threshold to $10,000 for bid letting will allow 155 
operations to proceed more efficiently; saving time and cost of letting bids.   156 
 157 
 Mr. Childs moved to suspend rules to allow discussion.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  All voted in 158 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mr. Childs asked why oral quotations were omitted from the process.  Ms. 159 
Fellner said there was no way to document oral quotations; she believed it was necessary to have a 160 
paper trail, even if it was just an email message from the vendor to have accountability. 161 
 162 
 Mayor Samples asked Ms. Fellner to be sure that “purchase order” was clearly defined in the 163 
code so there would be no misunderstanding at a later date.  Mr. Childs moved to reconvene regular 164 
session.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 165 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 166 
 Mr. Johnson moved to approve first reading of Ordinance #14-0777.  Mr. Childs seconded.  Mr. 167 
Johnson asked if the definition would be provided prior to second reading.  Ms. Fellner said yes.  All voted 168 
in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 169 
   170 
 iii.  Ordinance #14-0778 to amend §5-32(B) Statements of Economic Interest and §5-33 171 
Campaign Disclosure Forms, Administrator Fellner.  Ms. Fellner presented the decision paper that is 172 
on file and explained that the State Code no longer requires Statements of Economic Interest from all 173 
candidates; only the successful candidates.  The town wants to comply with all State Codes and its own 174 
Code of Ordinances; conflicts between the codes default to compliance with State Code, therefore, in this 175 
particular ordinance, pursuant to two attorneys’ recommendations, the proposed ordinance will amend the 176 
Town Code to require that candidates comply with State Codes in regard to Statements of Economic 177 
Interest and Campaign Disclosure Forms. 178 
 179 
 Mr. Johnson moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance #14-0778.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  Mr. 180 
Johnson asked if the ordinance applied to current councilmembers.  Ms. Fellner said yes as they are 181 
successful candidates.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 182 
 183 
 iv.  Ordinance #14-0779 to adopt FY 2014-2015 Municipal Budget, Director King.  Ms. Mabry 184 
moved to defer first reading of Ordinance #14-0779.  Mayor Pro Tem Pellegrino seconded.  All voted in 185 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  186 
  187 
 B.  Resolution #14-146 to Recommend to the League of Cities the Nomination of Howard 188 
Barnard to the Horry County Ride III Committee, Mayor Samples.  The resolution was read, a copy of 189 
which is on file.  Mr. Johnson moved to approve Resolution #14-146.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All voted in 190 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   191 
  192 
 C.  RFP (Request for Proposals) Award for Annual Audit Firm July 2014-June 30 2018, 193 
Administrator Fellner.  Ms. Fellner presented the decision paper, a copy of which is on file.  Green, 194 
Finney & Horton submitted the low bid for the requested services.  This firm will present a new 195 
perspective to review financial operations and offer suggestions for improvement.  The Governmental 196 
Financial Account standards recommend that auditors be changed periodically. 197 
 198 
 Mr. Stevens moved to approve the award for the RFP to Green, Finney & Horton.  Mr. Childs 199 
seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.    200 
 201 
 D.  Annual Turkey Trot, Request for 3-year Commitment, Mr. Verlon Wulf.  Mr. Wulf was not 202 
present, so there was no presentation. 203 
      204 
 E.  Guy Daniels Memorial Foundation, Support Requested for Surf-off Event, Mr. Mikey 205 
Pruitt.  Mr. Pruitt made a presentation, a copy of which is on file, to Town Council including a request for 206 
Town Council to support the event, blocking off and allowing free parking between 12th and 14th Avenues 207 
South during the annual event; covered stage set up on the beach; two large tents set up beside the 208 
stage; eight tables (no chairs); assortment of trash and recycle cans; barricades to close off 13th Avenue 209 
parking lot for use by SAFER (Surfside Area Fire and Emergency Rescue) for food tent and contest 210 
officials.  Between 2,000 and 3,000 attend the annual event.  The event raises scholarship money for 211 
local students; over $70,000 need based scholarships have been awarded during the last 15 years.   212 
 213 
 Mr. Stevens moved to support the event as requested.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in 214 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   215 
  216 
 F.  Planning Commission Appointments (3) – Mary Ellen Abrams. Mikey Pruitt and Anita 217 
Crone (may be deferred until after executive session.)  Mr. Childs moved to suspend rules to allow 218 
discussion.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mr. Stevens did not believe 219 
executive session was necessary, because two volunteers were reappointments, and the third had 220 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

served successfully on other committees.  They were all eager to serve the town.  Mr. Stevens moved to 221 
reconvene regular session.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  222 
 223 
 Mr. Stevens moved to appoint Mary Ellen Abrams, Mikey Pruitt, and Anita Crone the planning 224 
commission for 4-year terms.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   225 
 226 
 8.  DISCUSSION
 228 

  227 

 A.  §2-39(a) Agenda; §2-39(b)(9) Discussion; §2-40 Addressing the Council, and §2-54 229 
Appearance of Citizens, Councilmember Mabry.  Ms. Mabry presented the decision paper, a copy of 230 
which is on file.  Adopting the proposed ordinance will ensure that the town meeting agendas are properly 231 
set and that future meetings are held without fear of disruption.  Mr. Magliette could support the proposed 232 
ordinance, but asked that there be no limitation on the number of speakers; he believed everyone should 233 
have an opportunity to speak.  After lengthy discussion, council agreed to bring the proposed ordinance 234 
for first reading at the next meeting with no limitation on the number of speakers. 235 
 236 
 B.  Social Interaction/Fellowship Proposals, Councilmember Magliette.  Mr. Magliette 237 
presented his written proposal, a copy of which is on file, for social breakfasts and dinners to be held in 238 
town, Dutch treat.  Ms. Fellner said Ms. Ellis will help publicize the events.  Mayor Samples supported as 239 
long as no town funds were expended.  After additional discussion, Town Council agreed to support the 240 
proposal on a trial basis. 241 
 242 
 C.  Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council.  There were no 243 
other discussion topics. 244 
  245 
 9.  
 247 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments (5 minutes.) 246 

 Ms. Patricia Magliette, Harbor Lights Drive, believed that the public would act appropriately and 248 
should have an opportunity to speak.   249 
 250 
 Ms. Wanda Burgess, 15th Avenue South, thought the breakfasts and dinner proposals were a 251 
good idea, but believed every restaurant in town should hosts the meals, especially during the summer 252 
season. 253 
 254 
 Ms. Joyce O’Brien, South Myrtle Drive, was concerned about the lack of golf cart parking.  An 255 
area where she has parked for years now prohibits golf cart parking.  It was inconvenient, and no other 256 
parking was nearby.  She was neither for nor against the meters, but there was a parking problem.  It was 257 
difficult to see around cars parked on the boulevard.  She was very upset with the parking issues; there 258 
were more police issuing parking tickets than taking care of crime, in her opinion.  The town is not friendly 259 
anymore.  She wanted Town Council to address the problems. 260 
 261 
 Mr. Carl Copenhager, South Poplar Drive, was concerned about the rate increase for the 262 
dumpsters and had been unsuccessful getting in touch with the sanitation supervisor.  He believed the 263 
fees were too high and chose to remove his dumpster from the apartments. 264 
 265 
 Mr. Ron Ott, 7th Avenue North, facetiously said the Constitution and Bill of Rights ensuring free 266 
speech should be thrown away.  He asked if anyone realized that four different citizens asked questions 267 
at the last meeting, none of which have yet to be addressed.  He believes that communication from the 268 
podium is not addressed, but that it should be by either council or staff.  He did not believe a special 269 
ordinance was needed; communications just needed to improve. 270 
 271 
 Mr. Reece Boyd introduced himself to Town Council.  He is a candidate for Horry County Council 272 
District 5, and offered any assistance he could to the town.  As an attorney, he appreciated Mr. Stevens’ 273 
comments about the peddling ordinance.  He believed Mr. Battle would advise the town appropriately.   274 
 275 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 Ms. Mary Ann Kroll, 2nd Avenue North, commended the police department staff for their efforts to 276 
apprehend a suspect that went through her neighborhood.  She did not believe the police received 277 
enough credit for their work.  Fortunately, she had never needed to call them, but she knew they would be 278 
there right away, and appreciated that.  279 
 280 
 Mr. Mark Gibbs said his wife sent a letter today to all councilmembers about Surfside Beach 281 
Youth Sports Association.  He encouraged Town Council to read the letter, and speak with them after the 282 
meeting if they had questions.  A petition was being prepared to request that the town withdraw its 283 
support for the association, because of the many problems in the organization. 284 
 285 
 Mr. Timothy Courtney, South Poplar Drive, said an email was sent to Town Council today about 286 
the parking issue on 13th Avenue.  He asked members to please consider it and contact him with 287 
questions. 288 
 289 
 10.  
 291 

COUNCIL COMMENTS. 290 

 Mr. Childs thought the City of Myrtle Beach would work to disperse the Bike Fest crowd, and the 292 
town should be proactive in this regard.   293 
 294 
 Mr. Stevens participated in a police ride-along and now understands more about what the police 295 
do and how well the department operates.  He asked about bicycles being ridden on sidewalks and 296 
learned there is a state law that addresses that.  The recent Bike Fest was a horrific event; the town 297 
definitely has to plan for the future in this regard.  He received emails from Mr. Courtney and others, 298 
about the sports association and speeding on the boulevard.  Town Council would do everything it could 299 
to make it right.  He encouraged everyone to attend the 9:00 a.m. June 2nd workshop to discuss parking 300 
and the budget.  Mr. Stevens thanked everyone for attending. 301 
 302 
 Ms. Mabry thanked the police department.  Officers were in every car the town owns and were on 303 
the road this past Saturday night.  She was thankful for living here, but knew the town could not be 304 
complacent in regard to the Bike Fest.  She knew the police department was already making plans for 305 
next year.  She sincerely thanked Mayor Samples and Town Council in advance because she knew they 306 
would do everything possible to ensure the safety of town citizens and businesses.   307 
 308 
 Mr. Johnson said the issue with multiple public speakers had only come up two or three times 309 
during the past six years.  The publics’ voice was important, and he did not intend to upset anyone, but it 310 
was probably a matter of having too many controversial items on an agenda.  The council met 53 times 311 
last year, so there was a lot to do.  He thanked everyone for attending, and the support; he looked 312 
forward to working with this council. 313 
 314 
 Mr. Pellegrino asked that thanks be expressed to the police department.  There were a few email 315 
messages with concerns, but overall he did not hear of any major events or injuries.  The podium being 316 
called “the black hole of communication” was the most concerning comment heard.  The council has an 317 
opportunity to respond to the public during council comments.  He made notes on the comments, and 318 
would try to have answers for the inquiries.   319 
 320 
 Mr. Magliette agreed and said kudos to the police department.  The town’s fire and police 321 
departments and town services were wonderful.  The town is a little gem, where he and his wife feel safe.    322 
Regarding feedback to public comments, he thought some process should be developed to respond to 323 
the public; perhaps a summary by the town administrator at meetings. Mr. Magliette thanked everyone for 324 
attending and expressing their opinions.  The Adopt-a-Beach program has slots at 15th, 16th, and 17th 325 
Avenues North available for adoption.  Saturday, May 31st at 9:00 a.m. 10th to 13th Avenues will be 326 
cleaned.  Please contact him, if you are interested in participating or show up Saturday. 327 
  328 
 Mayor Samples said the most important and enjoyable event during the anniversary was hearing 329 
long time residents reading comments about feeling safe.  Safety is the number one priority of local 330 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
May 27, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

government.  State Law requires the council to adopt a budget by the end of June.  Citizens pay for the 331 
services that they want; maintaining that quality of life and feeling of safety cost.  Last year staff received 332 
zero pay raises, which saved $100,000.  In the big picture of operations expense, that amount was 333 
nothing.  Town Council has the responsibility of leading and was elected to make the hard decisions.  334 
This is a beach town; summertime is when the town makes money and businesses thrive.  A friend of 335 
Mayor Samples owns multiple properties in town near the ocean who told him that the town is not the 336 
same.  Things change so Town Council has to plan; be willing to do the work, and task staff that the town 337 
has.  If staff is overburdened, it is Town Council’s responsibility to recognize that and correct it.  Mayor 338 
Samples said when he was first elected he tried responding to questions from the public during comment 339 
time; however, the discussions became ‘less than civil.’  That was why the ordinance was crafted, 340 
although he did not support it.  Dynamics have changed; the seated council is very different, and he 341 
believed it was a better council.         342 
 343 
 11.  
 345 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 344 

 A.  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment of a person to a public 346 
body.  This item was addressed in Business Item 7.F. 347 
 348 
 B.  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, appointment, compensation, 349 
promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee.  This item omitted by approved motion in 350 
Agenda Approval, Item 3. 351 
     352 
 12.  ADJOURNMENT.

 355 

   Mr. Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:33 p.m.  Ms. Mabry 353 
seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 354 

      Prepared and submitted by, 356 
 357 
      _____________________________________________  358 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 359 
Approved:  June 9, 2014 360 
 361 
 362 

____________________________________ 363 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 364 

         365 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 366 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council    367 
 368 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 369 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary M. Mabry, Town Council 370 
 371 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 372 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  373 
 374 
 375 
Clerk’s Note:  This document constitutes summary minutes of the meeting that was digitally recorded.  376 
Audio recordings are published on the town website after the meeting (approximately two weeks) until the 377 
minutes are approved and published.  You may download the recording to your personal computer from 378 
the website, or bring a flash drive to the town clerk to obtain a copy.  Appointments to hear or to obtain 379 
copies of recordings should be scheduled with the town clerk, telephone 843.913.6333.  In accordance 380 
with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties. The 381 
agenda was posted on the town website, the entry door at Town Council Chambers, and in the Town Hall 382 
reception area.  Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee. 383 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  BUDGET & PARKING WORKSHOP ACTION MINUTES  2 
  JUNE 2, 2014 – 9:00 A.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBER 4 
 5 
 CALL TO ORDER.
 7 

    6 

 Mayor Samples called the budget workshop to order at 9:00 a.m.  Mayor 8 
Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, 9 
Mabry, Magliette, and Stevens were in attendance.  A quorum was present. Others 10 
present: Parking Committee Chairman Saunders, and Committee Members Dodge, 11 
Goff, Kohlmann, and Kohlmann; Mike Kish, Lanier Parking; Administrator Fellner; Town 12 
Clerk Herrmann; Finance Director King; Planning Director Morris; Public Works Director 13 
Adair; Fire Chief Cimini; Police Chief Keziah, and Recreation Supervisor Ellis.      14 
 15 
 Mr. Kohlmann presented history and explanations about the parking committee’s 16 
efforts to improve the town parking problems.  The main point was that neither the 17 
previously prepared parking studies nor the parking committee recommended parking 18 
on Ocean Boulevard.   19 
 20 
 Mr. Kish explained that golf carts were treated like cars and other vehicles for 21 
parking enforcement. 22 
 23 
 Ms. Joyce O’Brien was upset that golf cart parking was so limited at the beach, 24 
and encouraged council to delineate more resident golf cart parking.  25 
 26 
 Councilmember Johnson was excused from the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 27 
 28 
 Parking Committee Members were excused after their discussion ended at 10:21 29 
a.m. 30 
 31 
 Mr. Ron Ott said the town must plan for the future; there is no way to tell what 32 
parking may be required ten or 20 years from now. 33 
 34 
 RECESS at 10:21 a.m.  RECONVENE at  10:31 a.m. 35 
 36 
 Directors Morris and Adair, Chiefs Cimini and Keziah, and Supervisor Ellis were 37 
excused at 1:47 p.m.  38 
 39 
 Mayor Samples made two comments for the record:  (1) “My hope is that each 40 
and every councilmember would today bring forward any specific items in the budget 41 
2014 and 15 so that the membership can consider that in this workshop forum where 42 
we can have a more free-flowing discussion.” and (2)  “The staff prepared the estimate 43 
as best they could figure at 62.5, $62,500 per mil.  What a 6 mil increase would be, 44 
which is the maximum allowable by a simple majority of council, should council, a 45 
simple majority decide that a tax increase were necessary, and that meant that we 46 



Town Council Workshop – Budget & Parking   
June 2, 2013 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

would receive the $375,000, $70,000, and that doesn’t balance our budget, does it?”  47 
Ms. King replied now the budget is negative $725,000; the maximum based on the 48 
millage bank is 15.5-percent, which is 6.22 mils. 49 
 50 
 
 52 

Town Council Concurred to: 51 

   1.  Welcome signs on Highway 17 only, $50,000 53 
   2.  MASC prepare analysis of change from SIC to NAICS business license 54 
classifications, $5,000 55 
 3.  Road improvements CTC offset, $25,000 56 
   4.  Road improvements, Town cost, $240,000 57 
   5.  Reception Upgrade, Marketing Brochures, Buy Local Campaign, Open for 58 
Business Packages, $5,000 59 
   6.  Fire Inspection Fee Information to be included in Open for Business Packages 60 
   7.  Road Engineering for Highway 17, staff to question definition of 61 
“maintenance,” if allowed uses move forward with $250,000 reserve  62 
 8.  Fire Inspector Salary, $19,400 63 
 9.  Upkeep Civic Center, $6,500 64 
 10.  CRS – permanent part-time employee $25,000 65 
 11.  CRS - $10,000  66 
 12.  Fire Inspection Fee charges, $50,000 gross revenue expected, net 67 
employee expense $30,600 68 
 13.  Civic Center Fee charges, $7,300 gross, net cleaning costs $800 69 
 14.  Tax Millage increase amount to be discussed at June 5 Workshop at 5:00 70 
p.m. 71 
 15.  Town Event Parking free at pier and Yaupon parking lots one hour before 72 
event, during, and one hour after event ($TBD) 73 
 16.  Guy Daniels Parking (14th to 16th Avenues South, and 13th Avenue South 74 
parking lot free during 2-day event-May 28th Regular Meeting), ($1,400)   75 
 17.  June 9 Regular Meeting Agenda, add executive session to discuss PBZ part-76 
time employee and pier contract negotiation  77 
 18.  Parking Committee to develop ten or fewer recommendations of the totality 78 
of the parking issue and submit in writing for Town Council consideration 79 
 19.  Transfer $105,000 from hospitality fund to beach renourishment  80 
 20.  Transfer another $100,000 from hospitality fund to beach renourishment 81 
from monies deferred from pier improvements ($200,000) 82 
 21.  Move 2014-2015 hospitality fund balance at year-end into beach 83 
renourishment  84 
 22.  Vision workshop to be held in November at Vereen Gardens; 2 days, 1 night 85 
 23.  Amphitheater – do not bring back until Town Council requests 86 
 24.  Farmers Market Structure w/ADA Bathroom – do not bring back until Town 87 
Council requests 88 
 25.  No employee parking permits for pier businesses or lifeguards effective July 1 89 
 26.  Defer $125,000 dump truck 90 
 27.  Staff to proceed with annexation of the four targeted businesses 91 
 28.  Budget Workshop, Thursday, June 5, at 5:00 p.m. 92 



Town Council Workshop – Budget & Parking   
June 2, 2013 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 93 
 
 95 

Council directed staff to perform, prepare or bring back: 94 

   1.  Reception Area Professional Update Proposal (presentation by Posh Living, 96 
LLC, the sole in-town interior designer, will be made at June 23 Town Council meeting)       97 
   2.  Prepare exhibit with approved uses for all restricted funds 98 
 3.  Copy of most current parking study to all Town Councilmembers 99 
 4.  Town Administrator to contact vacant ocean-front lot owners regarding 100 
parking coop 101 
 5.  Analysis of Caropines Sanitation Service; are long term contracts necessary; 102 
what additional expenses would be incurred in the future 103 
 6.  Allowable uses for CTC monies; define maintenance; is beautification for 104 
Highway 17, Surfside Drive and Ocean Boulevard included 105 
 7.  Install sidewalk from Fuller Park restrooms to allow easy access from Passive 106 
Park 107 
 8.  Fire Inspection Fee Ordinance to be presented in July; Public Hearing to be 108 
held before first reading 109 
 9.  Civic Center Fee Ordinance to be presented in July; Public Hearing to be held 110 
before first reading 111 
 10.  Prepare three ordinances regarding millage to be considered at July 5 112 
workshop at 5:00 p.m.:  (1) 40 mils; (2) 46.62 mils, and (3) millage to balance budge 113 
 11.  Determine how much CRS point value the beach renourishment fund 114 
balance gives the town 115 
 116 
 ADJOURNMENT.

  Prepared and submitted by,  ___________________________________________  119 

  Mayor Samples declared the meeting adjourn the meeting at 117 
3:36 p.m.  118 

         Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 120 
Approved:  June 9, 2014   121 
 122 

____________________________________ 123 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 124 

 125 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 126 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore  Robert F. Childs, Town Council   127 
 128 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 129 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 130 
 131 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 132 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  133 

 134 
Clerk's Note:  This document constitutes action minutes of the meeting that was digitally 135 
recorded.  Appointments to hear recordings may be scheduled with the town clerk, or you may 136 
bring a flash drive to obtain a copy of the audio recording.  In accordance with FOIA, meeting 137 
notice and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties. The agenda was 138 
posted on the town website, the entry door at Town Council Chambers, and in the Town Hall 139 
reception area.  Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee.   140 



0 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

    Surfside Beach Fire Department 
Town Council Report 

June 9, 2014 

 
 

Submitted By 

Daniel J. Cimini 
Fire Chief 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

The following is an activity report of the operations of the Fire Department from 
May 1, 2014 to May 31, 2014 

Fire Runs  

Mutual Aid {Given}   0 

Mutual Aid {Received}   1  

Automatic Aid {Given}   3 

Automatic Aid {Received}   6 

Building Fire             2 

Outside Equipment Fire   0  

Mobile Property, Vehicle Fire   0 

Arcing wire   1 

Brush, brush/grass mixture   0 

Dumpster, Rubbish, Other   0 

Fire Other   0 

                                         Total                    13 

Rescue/Emergency Medical Incident  

Rescue/EMS other   1 
Medical Assist, assist EMS Crew           51 
Motor Vehicle Accident/no injuries   5 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with injuries  2 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with Entrapment  1 
                                         Total           60 

Hazardous Condition / No Fire  

Power line Down   2 

Vehicle Accident, General Cleanup  1 

Hazardous Condition   0 

Gas Leak {Natural – Propane}   0 

                                          Total   3 



2 | P a g e  

 

Service Call  

Smoke or Odor Removal   0 

Person in Distress, other   0 

Assist Invalid   0 

Service Call, other   0 

Unauthorized Burning   0 

Cover Assignment, Stand By, / Move-up  0 

Elevator Rescue   0 

Public Service Assistance, Other   4  

Water Problem, Other   0  

                                           Total    4 

Good Intent Call  

Dispatched & Cancelled en-route   2 
Other   1 

Assist Police Other   0 

                                           Total   3 

False Alarm/False Call  

Alarm System Activation, No Fire   4 

False Alarm or False Call, No Fire   1 

System Malfunction   1 

Smoke Detector Activation   2 

Sprinkler Activation, No Fire   0 

No Incident Found   0 

                                            Total   8 

Total Incidents: 

Total Incidents May 2013         {62} 

Total Incidents May 2014         {91}  



3 | P a g e  

 

Lost Estimates:  

Estimated loss by Fire for May 2014:   $ 2,500.00 {Estimated} 

Additional information for March  

 All SCBA’s {Self Contained Breathing Apparatus} monthly tests per NFPA requirements and 
repairs made; adjustments and battery replacements were completed. 

Monthly Turnout Gear inspection completed per NFPA Requirements. 

All apparatus equipment checked and inventories verified for compliance to ISO, OSHA and 
NFPA requirements.   

Surfside Beach Fire Department Volunteer staffing levels remains the same as last month.  

 
Fire Prevention Activities  

Completed Inspections     1      
Re-Inspections    1 
Public Education Events    3 
New Business Inspections    8 

Pre Fire Plans {New}    7   

Pre-Plans Revised / Up-Dated           82 

Fire Station Visits / Tours    9 

Childs Birthday Party @ Fire Station  0 

Child Car Seat Inspection / Installs  1     

Total Fire Prevention Activities:      112 

During the month, new business inspections completed in accordance with State, NFPA and 
ICC codes. Two Fire Prevention Grants applied for one with Wal-Mart and one with Sam’s Club. 
We were awarded a $1000.00 Grant from Wal-Mart.  The Sam’s Club grant is under review and 
we hope to hear something sometime in the Month of June. 

We entered the South Carolina Fire Chief’s Education Award program, “The Richard S. 
Campbell Award” which will be announced at the State Fire Chief’s conference in June.  The 
award is given to fire departments for their “Excellance in Fire Prevention and Education 
Programs”, we are hoping that our fire prevention and community education programs will be 
strong enough for our department to win in its category of “Combination Fire Department” 
serving 5,000 people or less.  



4 | P a g e  

 

The fire prevention division has been working on the various sections of the ISO report to make 
sure we are ready for the next inspection. 

The fire pre-plans have been gone over for accuracy, to bring numbers up-to-date to provide 
better information for the proposed inspection program that we discussed at budget retreat.   
Town Manager Fellner for the final report has assigned a target date of September 1 for the 
report to be to Council. 

All hydrants in town have had the required inspection by members of the department to comply 
with ISO requirements.  We are currently doing a distance study on all hydrants within town to 
insure that all buildings are within the required 750 feet limit.  

Training 

 Volunteer personnel dedicated 220 hours to training and 169 hours responding to calls during 
the month.  
During the month of May, the training drill topic continued on extrication along with 
required CPR up-dates, and hose deployment. They also went over the new nozzles 
and hose placed on Engine 56 and 57.  
 
Career personnel have completed the Municipal Association of South Carolina (Risk 
Management Services on line training) to receive an additional 4 hours of on-line training during 
the month.  

All career personnel continue to do the Centrelearn training {Horry County Fire Rescue} to keep 
up their skills and knowledge to stay up of the national trends as a First Responder totaling 4 
additional training hours. The Career personnel attended the required drills to meet their training 
hours to comply with ISO and NFPA requirements. 

 Staff Report 

Captain Prentice Williams {Training Officer}:   
Captain Williams continues to research training needs for our career and volunteer members.  

He continues to work with the area departments on joint training and teaching our personnel on 
the skills needed to be efficient at emergencies.  During the month of May he along with the 
other Captains continue conducting drills with the volunteers that consisted of driver operator 
drills on a one on one basis in addition to the standard Monday evening drills. 

He continues to hold CPR Classes, attended by both in town and out of town residents. Town 
Safety Training conducted each month to keep the town in compliance with our insurance 
carrier’s requirements.  

He is preparing the training for the month of June which will be centered on interior structure 
firefighting, hose deployment, SCBA mask fit testing and the ISO required night drill and the 
required multi-company drill. 

Captain Williams is an outstanding employee. 

 



5 | P a g e  

 

 

Captain Robert Packard {Technical Services Officer}:   
Captain Packard continues to work on updating inventories of fire hose, SCBA’s, nozzles, fire 
gear and other small equipment in the department.   

He is entering the inventories in Fire Programs; this is a monumental project, which requires a 
lot of time to gather the needed inventory information to enter in Fire Programs.  

He is continuing installing asset tags on all equipment that will have identifier numbers so that 
items identified by type, date in service and replacement dates match what is in Fire Program’s 
inventory.  

All hose in the department tested during the month and records up-dated to be compliant with 
ISO.  We lost five {100’} lengths of 5” supply hose, four {50’} lengths of 1.75” hose during the 
tests this year.  We have replaced the hose from our 2013 budget and up-dated some out of 
date hose as well. 

He has also been overseeing the station maintenance and cleaning supplies needed to 
complete that assignment.  He and the Career and Volunteer personnel did a great job in 
getting the Station ready for the League of Cities Dinner held on May 8, 2014 

Captain Packard is responsible for Technical Services {the facilities overall, equipment 
inspections, inventories, turn-out gear checks} and apparatus maintenance scheduling and 
repairs is a position that has a lot of responsibility. 

He is doing a good job and is a very good firefighter. 

 
Captain Ted Sacra {Fire Prevention Officer}:   
Captain Sacra is handling the fire prevention activities and inspections.  

He completed an application to enter the department in the Richard S. Campbell Award 
program sponsored by the South Carolina Fire Chiefs Association, results will be known at the 
State Fire Chiefs Conference in June.  He and volunteer Public Education Officer Bob Beebe 
put a lot of time in gathering the information needed to prepare the application. 

He has been putting a lot of time in bringing the fire prevention records up-to status to prepare 
for the ISO re-inspection. 

He worked on a grant request for fire prevention supplies from Wal-Mart and has received 
notice that the grant was awarded. 

He is a model employee who strides to make improvements and is always willing to take on new 
assignments. 

 

Engineer Tom Zimpleman {Engineer Firefighter II}: 
Engineer Zimpleman continues to be a model employee; he has been assisting Captain 
Packard on several different projects that include station inventories, equipment placement on 
the apparatus and facilities maintenance.  

He continues working on a physical fitness program for the career and volunteer members of 
the department.  He has been working with several members both career and volunteer on their 



6 | P a g e  

 

physical ability by helping them lose weight and building confidence to perform at the highest 
level. 

Engineer Zimpleman is currently in EMT class and is doing very good, his first examine received 
a 100 grade.  The training course is a very demanding one that requires many hours of his 
personal time to study and attend classes. This is not a required course in his job description; 
he wants to improve his EMS skills. 

He is a great asset to the department and is a hardworking employee. 

 

Engineer Larry Carter {Engineer Firefighter II}: 
Engineer Carter is a very good employee and good engineer who has a great deal of fire ground 
knowledge to share with the members of the department.  

He and Captain Williams have been working on the vehicle extraction classes and planning 
future training programs for both career and volunteer personnel. He continues developing 
PowerPoint presentations for drills, and is working on the Safety Training Programs for the 
Safety Committee. 

He has been working on map books for our mutual aid departments so that they can find our 
streets easily when responding into the town.  He has also been helping with hydrant testing 
and loading information into Fire programs in preparation of our ISO re-inspection.  

He is a very good asset to the department and is a hardworking employee. 

 

Engineer James Behrens {Engineer Firefighter II}:  
Engineer Behrens is improving in understanding his job as a career engineer/firefighter II.  He is 
very eager to learn and has been doing a good job. His Captain has been working with him to 
improve his driving and pumping skills on each shift, his progress is way above what is 
expected.  I am very pleased with his work ethic and his want to learn. 

He is good employee who is working to become a very good employee. 

 
Chief’s Comments:  
The month was a busy one with calls for help from residents and visitors to Surfside Beach; we 
can tell that the summer season is here.  Both bike week events caused us a higher run volume 
than normal. Auto Aid received from Horry County Fire Rescue Engine 20 and Rescue 1 on all 
alarm activations and reported structure fires.  Murrells Inlet Garden City Fire Department 
Engine 77 responded to a request for mutual aid to assist us at a structure fire on 10th Ave. 
South. 

The department was proud to host the League of Cities meeting during the month and we 
received compliments on our station, equipment and the meal prepared by the firefighters.  

I continue working on the Emergency Management Plan for the up-coming Hurricane season as 
well as planning a Town Hall type meeting with NOAA and local weather personnel. The first 
Town meeting scheduled for Thursday June 5, 2014 at 6:30 pm in Council Chambers. 



7 | P a g e  

 

I worked with Building Official Kevin Otte on the pier standpipe system {issues} so that the 
system is ready for operation for the 4th of July fireworks.  I approved the fireworks permit 
application and forwarded it to the State fire Marshal’s office for permitting.  

The Town manager and I worked on the job description for my replacement during the month so 
it could be posted on the website in early June. 

I attended the Horry Georgetown Fire Chiefs meeting, the Water Rescue Coalition meeting, and 
the State Firefighters Mobilization meeting during the month.  I attended all department drills 
and meetings as well as staff and budget retreat meetings. 

During the month, I performed 6 hours of in-service training, participated in several Webinars 
with NOAA regarding the up-coming Hurricane Season. I worked on preparing for the up-
coming ISO re-inspection, the ordering of the water rescue equipment and getting the station 
ready to host the League of Cities Meeting.  

I want to thank Chief Keziah and his personnel for all the help that they gave fire rescue during 
the bike weeks and the structure fire on 10th Ave South and his generosity in providing dinner 
during both bike events for our personnel.   

I would also like to make a special heart felt thank you to the career and volunteer staff of 
Surfside Beach Fire Rescue for all the hard work getting ready for the League of Cities meeting, 
the bike week coverage, and all the extra effort going into the preparation for the ISO re-
inspection.  They have all been AWESOME. 

Respectfully Submitted 

Daniel J. Cimini 
Chief of Department 

























































































































































Decision Paper 
 
Written by:  Debra Herrmann and Micki Fellner 
 
1.  SUBJECT:  Second Reading Ordinance #14-0777 to increase the procurement 
dollar amount for formal bids and to amend §2-185 Definitions to include “Purchase 
Orders” (pursuant to directive at 05/27/2014 Town Council Meeting.)  
 
2.  PURPOSE:   
 (a)  To increase the bid threshold from $5,000 to $10,000  
 (b)  To clarify authority to approve purchases 
 (c)  To establish purchase order system by ordinance 
 
3.  ASSUMPTIONS:  
 (a)  The town will continue to purchase services and/or materials to continue its 
operations 
 (b)  The price of services and materials have been increasing steadily over the 
past several years   
  
4.  FACTS: 
 (a)  The current bid threshold of $5,000 was established by Ordinance #00-0450 
on October 24, 2000 
 (b)  The cost of doing business has risen substantially since 2000 and staff is 
regularly bidding for materials and services, because of the low threshold   
 (c)  Establishing a $10,000 threshold will enable town staff to conduct business 
more quickly and efficiently for most routine operations  
 (d)  Establishing a purchase order system by ordinance will ensure that the town 
administrator approves all expenditures during any one fiscal year that exceed $10,000 
 (e)  Town Council adopted first reading of this ordinance at the May 27th, 2014 
regular meeting without change.  A request was made to clearly define “purchase 
order,” which is addressed in Section 2-185, Definitions 
 
5.  IMPACT OF SUCCESS OR FAILURE: 
 (a)  Failure to adopt the higher bid threshold will require bid letting for all services 
and materials that cost $5,000 or more. 
 (b)  Adopting the higher bid threshold will result in a reduced number of bids let 
for routine operational expenditures, and result in increased savings of both money and 
time, and allow staff to proceed with projects up to $10,000 more quickly. 
    
6.  RECOMMENDATION:  Approve as presented. 
 
7.   RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Service is the goal; increasing the 
threshold for bid letting will allow operations to proceed more efficiently; saving time and 
cost of letting bids.  



Ordinance No. 14-0777 
First Reading:  May 27, 2014   
Second Reading: 06/09/2014 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) TO AMEND §2-208 TO INCREASE THE DOLLAR AMOUNTS 
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  FOR BIDDING AND PROCUREMENT AND TO AMEND  
    ) §2-209 BIDDING PROCEDURES AND TO AMEND §2-185 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )  DEFINITIONS TO ADD “PURCHASE ORDER” 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in 
council duly assembled desire to amend Section 2-208 Bidding and Quotation 
Requirements and Approved Authority of  the Town Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Town Council discussed the dollar limitations on purchasing during 
the recent budget workshop and determined that the dollar values were too low to 
effectively conduct business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to directives at the May 27, 2014 regular Town 
Council meeting, the definition of “Purchase Order” has been added to 
Section 2-185, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Section 2-185 is amended to add the definition of 
“Purchase Order;” Section 2-208 Bidding and Quotation Requirements And 
Approved Authority, and Section 2-209 Bidding Procedures of the Town Code of 
Ordinances is  are hereby amended to: 
 
 Sec. 2-185.  Definitions. 
 
 Purchase Order.  For the purposes of this code, “purchase order” shall 
mean that certain document issued by the town’s finance department for all 
expenditures with a value of $10,000 or more, and shall be issued upon 
receipt of a purchase requisition signed by the town administrator.  Said 
purchase order shall serve as the “purchase contract” for the expenditure. 
 
 All other paragraphs in Section 2-185 shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect.  
 
 Sec. 2-208.  Bidding, quotation and purchase order requirements and 
approval authority. 
 
 (a)  An item or group of items involving a single vendor and in excess of five ten 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) ($10,000) requires the execution of formal bidding 
procedures as set forth in Section 2-209 hereinbelow. 
 
 (b)  An item or group of items involving a single vendor and in excess of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00), but less than five ten thousand dollars ($5,000.00) 
($10,000) requires execution of informal bidding procedures as set forth in Section 2-
209 hereinbelow. 
 



Ordinance No. 14-0777 
First Reading:  May 27, 2014   
Second Reading: 06/09/2014 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 (c)  An item or group of items involving a single vendor and in an amount of less 
than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) shall be approved by the department head 
without obtaining more than one (1) quotation as long as expenditure meets approved 
budget guidelines. 
 
 (d)  Any expenditure over one thousand ($1,000.00) dollars shall be approved in 
advance by the town administrator.  
 
 (d)  (e) The administrator together with the finance director shall approve all 
purchases whether or not the expenditure is budgeted for which it has been determined 
the expenditure is in the best interest of the town and funds are available without 
exceeding the approved budget, subject to bid and quotation requirements set forth in 
this section and section 2-209 hereinbelow. 
 
 (e) (f)  The administrator shall inform town council in writing of any purchases, 
contracts or agreements or modifications thereto within fifteen (15) days of any 
purchases, contracts or agreements or modifications thereto when any of the 
purchases, contracts or agreements or modifications thereto exceeds five ten thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00) ($10,000). 
 
 (g)  All equipment, supplies or contractual services that exceed ten 
thousand ($10,000.00) dollars during any one fiscal year shall require a 
purchase requisition approved by the town administrator, and submitted 
to the finance department.  The finance department shall prepare a 
purchase order, which shall serve as the purchase agreement.  No 
purchase shall be subdivided to avoid the requirements of this section.  
 
Sec. 2-209. Bidding procedures. 
 
 (a)  Formal bids. 
 
 (1)  Class 1—Nonbudgeted expenditures $5,000 $10,000 and over.  
Nonbudgeted expenditures five ten thousand dollars ($5,000.00) ($10,000) and over 
shall require preparation of detailed specifications; bid package; advertisement in the 
legal section of a newspaper with general circulation in Surfside Beach at least once 
and not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the final submission 
date and time established for receiving bids. The administrator or his designee shall 
conduct a public bid opening in the presence of the appropriate department head. Bid 
tabulation, minutes of the opening, and bid specification compliance reviews shall be 
completed. Pursuant to §2-209(a)(1) the administrator shall submit bids, 
advertisement, minutes, bid tabulation, and administrator's recommendation to the 
mayor and town council for review and award. Bids received after the established 
deadline shall not be considered. 
 



Ordinance No. 14-0777 
First Reading:  May 27, 2014   
Second Reading: 06/09/2014 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 (2)  Class II—Budgeted expenditures $5,000  $10,000.00 and over.  Budgeted 
expenditures five ten thousand dollars ($5,000.00) ($10,000.00) and over shall 
require preparation of detailed specifications; bid package; advertisement in the legal 
section of a newspaper with general circulation in Surfside Beach at least once and not 
less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the final submission date and 
time established for receiving bids. The administrator or his designee shall conduct a 
public bid opening in the presence of the appropriate department head. Bid tabulation, 
minutes of the opening, and bid specification compliance reviews shall be completed. 
Pursuant to §2-209(a)(2) the administrator in his sole discretion shall award bids 
based on lowest and/or best bid for any budgeted item regardless of cost. Bids received 
after the established deadline shall not be considered. 
 
 (b)  Informal bids—Expenditures over $1,000 and less than $5,000  
($10,000.00).  Expenditures over one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and less than five 
ten thousand dollars ($5,000.00) ($10,000.00) shall require the administrator to 
receive three (3) oral or written quotations from separate vendors. The department head 
must document oral quotations. The administrator may award the bid after compliance 
review. 
 
  
 All other portions of Chapter 2 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and 
effect.  
 
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this 
ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held 
invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this article, which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of 
this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several 
sections hereof shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the 
meaning, construction, interpretation or effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon approval at second reading by the Town Council of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town 
of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this 9th day 
of June 2014. 
         

 
____________________________________ 

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 
         



Ordinance No. 14-0777 
First Reading:  May 27, 2014   
Second Reading: 06/09/2014 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore  Robert F. Childs, Town Council  
  
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 



Decision Paper 
 
Written by:  Debra Herrmann and Micki Fellner 
 
1.   SUBJECT:  Second Reading of Ordinance #14-0778 To Amend §5-32 
Statement of Economic Interest ¶ (B) Candidates for Town Council and to Amend §5-33 
Campaign Disclosure Forms 
    
2.   PURPOSE:  To amend the Town Code of Ordinances to comply with South 
Carolina Code regarding candidates filing Statements of Economic Interest (SEI) and 
campaign disclosure forms. 
 
3.   ASSUMPTIONS;  
 (a) The Town of Surfside Beach will continue to hold elections to seat 
councilmembers every even numbered year  
 (b)  The Town of Surfside Beach desires to comply with South Carolina Code 
regarding elections and the code requirements of the SC Ethics Commission  
  
4.   FACTS: 
 (a)  The Town of Surfside Beach held a general election in April 2014 
 (b) During said election, it was determined that SC Code no longer requires 
statements of economic interest from all candidates; only the successful candidates 
 (c) The Town of Surfside Beach Code of Ordinances conflicted with said (b) 
above in that town code required that candidates bring a completed SEI to the 
candidate filing appointment 
 (d) The State Ethics Commission worked with the town in order to have 
candidates for the April 2014 Election comply with the town code 
 (e) The State Ethics Commission attorney and the town attorney advised that 
the town code should be amended to simply state that candidates will comply with SC 
Code as applies to SEI filing and campaign disclosure forms  
 (f) Town Council adopted first reading of this ordinance at the May 27, 2014 
regular meeting 
 
5.   IMPACT OF SUCCESS OR FAILURE: 
 (a)  Failure to amend the town code will result in Town Council candidates being 
unable to comply with the requirement to deliver a completed SEI at the filing 
appointment; and properly filing campaign disclosure forms   
 (b)  Success will be achieved by candidates being able to properly file with the 
town for the election and also complying with applicable State Codes regarding SEI and 
campaign disclosure filing  
 
6.   RECOMMENDATION:  Approve as presented.   
 
7. RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The Town wants to comply with all 
State Codes and its own Code of Ordinances; conflicts between the codes default to 
compliance with State Code, therefore, in this particular ordinance, pursuant to two 
attorneys’ recommendations, the proposed ordinance will amend the Town Code as 
recommended. 



Ordinance No. 14-0778 
First Reading:  05/27/2014   

Second Reading: 06/09/2014 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) TO AMEND §5-32 STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST 
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  ¶ (b) CANDIDATES FOR TOWN COUNCIL AND TO AMEND  
    )  §5-33 CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE FORMS 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )    
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in 
council duly assembled desire to amend Section 5-32 Statement of Economic Interest, 
Paragraph (b), Candidates for Town Council, and to amend Section 5-33 Campaign 
Disclosure Forms of the Town Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, South Carolina Code of Laws requiring Statements of Economic 
Interest have changed to now require that only successful candidates must file a 
Statement of Economic Interest; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State Ethics Commission has advised that its code concerning 
Statements of Economic Interest, Campaign Disclosure Forms and that its election laws 
in general are anticipated to change in the near future; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the town’s attorney has advised that the proposed amendments be 
presented, which will result in the town’s compliance with State Code insofar as 
Statements of Economic Interest and Campaign Disclosure Forms are concerned,    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE,  Section 5-32 Statement of Economic Interest, Paragraph 
(b), Candidates for Town Council and Section 5-33 Campaign Disclosure Form of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, is hereby amended 
to:  
 Sec. 5-32. Statement of economic interests. 
  
  (b)  Candidates for town council. 
 
  (1)  Every candidate must file a statement of economic interests with the 
South Carolina Ethics Commission regardless of whether the filing is for a general or 
special election. 
 
  (2)  Every candidate must deliver to the town clerk a printed copy of the 
properly filed statement of economic interests and a printed copy of the confirmation of 
said filing before filing a statement of intention of candidacy. 
 
 Candidates for Town Council shall comply with the South Carolina 
Code of Laws in regard to filing statements of economic interest. 
 
 Sec. 5-33. Campaign disclosure form. 
 
 Pursuant to S.C. Code § 8-13-365, all candidates shall file electronically all 
disclosures and reports required pursuant to Chapter 13, Title 8, specifically §§ 365, 



Ordinance No. 14-0778 
First Reading:  05/27/2014   

Second Reading: 06/09/2014 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

1304, and 1308 and Chapter 17, Title 2. Disclosures and reports must be filed using an 
Internet-based filing system as prescribed by the SC Carolina Ethics Commission. 
 
 Candidates for Town Council shall comply with the South Carolina 
Code of Laws in regard to filing campaign disclosure forms. 
 
 All other portions of Chapter 5 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and 
effect.   
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this 
ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held 
invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this article, which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of 
this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several 
sections hereof shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the 
meaning, construction, interpretation or effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon approval at second reading by the Town Council of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town 
of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this 9th day 
of June 2014. 
 

 
____________________________________ 

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 
         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore  Robert F. Childs, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 































Decision Paper 
 
Written by:  Mary Beth Mabry, Micki Fellner and Debra Herrmann 
 
1.  SUBJECT:  First Reading of Ordinance #14-0780 to amend Town Code of Ordinances 
Sections 2-39(a) Agenda; 2-39(b)(9) Discussion; 2-40 Addressing the Council, and 2-54 
Appearance of Citizens.  
 
2.  FOR:  To clearly define and stipulate 
 (a) 2-39(a) that councilmembers and the administrator may add items to the town council 
agenda, and to clarify the deadline for submission deadline 
 (b) 2-39(b)(9) to add the words “Town Council” to the “Discussion” agenda item to clarify 
that the agenda item is for council to bring matters forward for discussion 
 (c) 2-40 to change “Addressing the Council” to “Town Council Rules of Conduct”   
 (d) 2-54 to change “Appearance of Citizens” to “Public Rules of Conduct”  
 (e) 2-54(a) to omit “business” agenda items, because the public may speak about any 
agenda item  
 
3.  PURPOSE:  To avoid continued confusion over who may add agenda items to the council’s 
agenda, and to set rules of behavior to be followed by councilmembers and the public. 
 
4.  ASSUMPTIONS:  
 (a) incidents have occurred and will continue to occur for which there are no clearly 
defined rules as to whom may add agenda items 
 (b)  incidents have occurred and will continue to occur where behavior on the part of 
a councilmember or the public have been questionable, offensive, or threatening 
 (c) Town Council desires to have codified rules of order which may be properly used 
to operate the council meetings and provide guidelines for effective, safe town meetings 
 
5.  FACTS: 
 (a)  adopting the amendments to §2-39 will clearly stipulate whom may add agenda 
items, and §2-39(b)(9) will clarify that the discussion topic is the appropriate time for 
councilmembers to bring forward matters of concern or interest for discussion 
 (b) adopting the amendments to §2-40 and §2-54 will ensure that council meetings 
are run effectively without threat of disruption 
 (c) codification of these rules is necessary in order to have enforcement thereof 
 (d) Robert’s Rule of Order, 10th Edition, Section 59 clearly states that authority must 
be given to those setting the agenda (see attached.)  
 
6.  IMPACT OF SUCCESS OR FAILURE: 
 (a)  Failure to adopt the amendment will result in anyone being allowed to add agenda 
items at will, and will allow disruptive behavior to continue during town council meetings 
 (b)  Success will be achieved by town council agendas having relevant town business  
and meetings will be run effectively, without disruption  
 
7.  RECOMMENDATION:  Concur to have the proposed ordinance brought forward for first 
reading at the next regular meeting.   
 
8.  RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Adopting the proposed ordinance will ensure that 
the town meeting agendas are properly set and that future meetings are held without fear of 
disruption 



  Ordinance No. 14-0780 
   First Reading:  06/09/2014  

Second Reading: _______ 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    )  
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  TO AMEND §2-39(a) Agenda; §2-39(b)(9) Discussion; §2-40 
    )  
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )  Addressing the Council, and §2-54 Appearance of Citizens 
 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in 
council duly assembled desire to amend §2-39(a) Agenda; §2-39(b)(9) Discussion; §2-
40 Addressing the Council, and §2-54 Appearance of Citizens; 
 
 WHEREAS, Town Council discussed the proposed amendments at the May 27, 
2014 regular Town Council Meeting;   
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, §2-39(a) Agenda; §2-39(b)(9) Discussion; §2-40 
Addressing the Council, and §2-54 Appearance of Citizens of the Code of Ordinances 
of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, are hereby amended to:  

 Sec. 2-39.  

 (a) [Agenda.]

Agenda and order of proceedings. 

 Matters to be considered by council at a regular meeting, 
special meeting, or workshop meeting shall be placed on a written agenda publicly 
posted by the town clerk. The town clerk must be notified of items to be placed on 
the agenda no later than Wednesday at 5:00 p.m. during the week immediately 
preceding the scheduled meeting. of items to be placed on the agenda. South Carolina 
Code Section 30-4-80 requires agendas of meetings be posted at least twenty-four (24) 
hours prior to a scheduled meeting with emergency meetings being an exception. 
Agenda items may be added by any member of Town Council, the town 
administrator, or the town clerk.  Department directors may submit 
agenda items with approval of the town administrator.  Any Cchanges to the 
agenda, such as tabling or moving an item to be heard first or deferring an item, may 
be made by motion presented during the meeting when that agenda item
 

 is presented for approval. 

 (b)(9)  Town Council Discussion. (added “Town Council” to clarify agenda 
“discussion” topic is for Town Council.) 

 Sec. 2-40.  Addressing the council

(a)  Addressing the council.  Every member of the town council when 
about to speak shall address the mayor as "Mr. Mayor" and in speaking shall avoid all 
disrespect to the town council and all personalities. The member shall confine himself to 
the subject under consideration. 

 Town Council Rules of Conduct. 

 

 



  Ordinance No. 14-0780 
   First Reading:  06/09/2014  

Second Reading: _______ 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 (b)   Meeting Conduct.   
 
 (1)   Pursuant to Roberts Rules of Order, the mayor or moderator of 
the meeting will monitor meeting activity.  Any councilmember that 
disrupts the meeting, offers verbal or physical threats, uses profanity, 
creates a health or safety problem, creates a hostile environment or 
displays any behavior construed to be unacceptable or dangerous may be 
asked to relinquish the floor or may be removed from the meeting at the 
discretion of the moderator.    
 
 (2)   Councilmembers will show every speaker respect during public 
comments.  Councilmembers are not to interrupt public speakers, answer 
questions, argue with, nor engage in any conversation during public 
comments.  Should the public speaker have specific questions, the mayor 
or moderator may ask the speaker to contact the town administrator, or 
councilmembers may respond to the speaker’s inquiry during council 
comments.  
 
 Sec. 2-54. Appearance of citizens.  Public Rules of Conduct. 
 
 (a) Public comments—Agenda business items. Any citizen of the municipality 
or guest may speak on agenda business items at a regular council meeting upon being 
recognized by the moderator during the Public Comments—Agenda business items 
portion of the meeting as provided in Section 2-39. Comments are limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker, and must be germane to agenda business
 

 items. 

 (b) Public comments—General. Any citizen of the municipality or guest may 
speak at a regular meeting on a matter pertaining to municipal services and operation, 
any topic that the speaker wishes, except personnel matters, upon being 
recognized by the moderator during the Public Comments—General portion of the 
meeting as provided in section 2-39 regardless of whether the citizen or guest has 
already spoken during the Public Comments-Agenda business items portion of the 
meeting.  Citizens' and guests' Comments are limited to five (5) minutes per speaker.  
with not more than three (3) speakers discussing the same subject.  The moderator 
shall have the right to limit the number of speakers on a specific topic.

 

 
(Omitted by consensus at May 27, 2014 Town Council Meeting.) 

 (c)   Public conduct.  Public speakers addressing the council must 
exercise common courtesy and respect.  The use of profanity, verbal or 
physical threats, or any behavior that may be construed as dangerous, 
create a health or safety problem, create a hostile environment, or 
otherwise disrupt the meeting are not permitted.  Doing so may result in 
speakers being asked to forfeit remaining time, or may be cause for 



  Ordinance No. 14-0780 
   First Reading:  06/09/2014  

Second Reading: _______ 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

removal from the meeting at the moderator’s discretion.  Public speakers 
may not disparage any member of Town Council or staff by name; 
comments are to be made pursuant to paragraphs (a) and (b) hereinabove. 
 
 All other portions of Chapter 2 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the 
other provisions of this article, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and 
to this end the provisions of this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several sections hereof shall 
be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation or 
effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon approval at second 
reading by the Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside 
Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ___ day of _______ 2014. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council    
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  
      
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 



Debra
Black Out Box







PUBLIC NOTICE 
 Notice of Public Hearing 

Town of Surfside Beach 
115 Highway 17 North 
Surfside Beach, SC 29575 

 
 
Pursuant to §6-1-80 of the SC Code of Laws, public notice is hereby given 
that the Town Council for the Town of Surfside Beach will hold a public 
hearing on the municipal budget for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. 
 
Date:       Monday, June 9, 2014  
Time:       6:30 P.M. 
Location:  Town Hall Council Chambers, 115 Highway 17 North 
  Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
  
For governmental operations, the proposed budget includes the following:  

 
  Budgeted  Proposed 
  Current  Projected  Percentage  Current 

 Fiscal Year             Operating                Change in               Fiscal Year 
 Operating  Revenue  Operating  Operating 
 Revenue         2014-2015     Revenue     Millage                         
 

Governmental 
Operations    $9,034,633  $8,979,700       -.61%         40 mils      

   
  Budgeted  Proposed 

 Current  Projected  Percentage  Estimated 
 Fiscal Year             Operating                Change in               Operating 
 Operating  Expenditures Operating  Millage for 
 Expenditures 2014-2015       Expenditures 2014-2015    
                   

Governmental 
Operations    $9,034,633  $8,979,700       -.61%         40 mils      
   
Proposed Millage Equals an estimated $2,479,500 in revenue in FY2014-2015. 

 
  

 




	Public Hearing - Budget FY 14-15.pdf
	PUBLIC NOTICE


